

IDEXX VetConnect PLUS Integration Guide

AVIMARK[®]

software.covetrus.com | 877-999-2838 © 2024 Covetrus, Inc. All rights reserved. No copying without consent.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Overview
Requirements and Supported Software Versions
Requesting a VetConnect PLUS Account4
Set Up VetConnect PLUS Services in Avimark
Set Up AVImark to Order Tests and Download Results6
Set Up - Advanced Options6
Set Up - System Tables8
Aligning Test Codes, Species/Breeds, and Prices
Set Up - Treatment List8
Mass Mapping9
Associating IDEXX VetConnect PLUS Services9
Mapping by Avimark Treatment Category10
Map AVImark Treatments to IDEXX VetConnect PLUS Lab Codes
Enable Employee Discounts for VetConnect PLUS Tests
Create A VetConnect Plus Test Requisition13
Creating a Requisition for Individual Test Orders
IDEXX Add-On Functionality14
IDEXX VetConnect PLUS Code Exists in Avimark16
IDEXX VetConnect PLUS Code Does NOT Exist in Avimark
Downloading Test Results19
Retrieving Results
Downloading a PDF of Results20
Viewing Requisitions on the VetConnect PLUS Site



Overview

The IDEXX VetConnect[®] PLUS is now integrated with AVImark® software.

Using the VetConnect PLUS service, your practice can:

- **1.** Seamlessly create electronic IDEXX test requisition forms for your IDEXX VetConnect PLUS Laboratories test orders.
- 2. Automatically download IDEXX VetConnect PLUS results into your patients' medical records. There are several benefits to using IDEXX VetConnect PLUS:
 - Improved order accuracy with bar-coded IDEXX forms and automatic error checking
 - Elimination of misspelled patient, doctor, and staff names
 - Automatic capturing of test fees to reduce missed charges

This document explains how to set up and start using the VetConnect PLUS service in AVImark software, how to use the VetConnect PLUS service to order tests, and how to download IDEXX VetConnect PLUS results into your software.

Requirements and Supported Software Versions

Your practice must provide the following:

- 1. Internet access on all computers that will be used to create test requisitions.
- An IDEXX VetConnect PLUS account and an IDEXX web services ID and password (instructions for obtaining both are included in this document).
- 3. AVImark Version 18.10.0 or higher.
- 4. Actively enrolled in AVImark Technical Support plan (required if a software update or setup assistance is needed).



Requesting a VetConnect PLUS Account

To use VetConnect PLUS services through AVImark software, your practice must have a VetConnect PLUS account and an IDEXX web services account ID and password. If your practice does not already have these, contact VetConnect PLUS Customer support:

- In the U.S., call 1-888-433-9987, or go to vetconnect.com and click Subscribe now, or email vccontactus@idexx.com.
- In Canada, call 1-800-667-3411, or email vccanada@idexx.com.

Ask customer support to set up both a VetConnect PLUS account for you and a web services account ID and password. Be prepared to provide the following information:

- 1. Your IDEXX VetConnect PLUS Laboratories account number.
- 2. The name of the person at your practice who will administer the account, including his or her email address.
- 3. The name of your practice management software.

IDEXX will provide a user name and password for the VetConnect PLUS administrator, and will provide an IDEXX web services account ID and password. You will need all of these in order to complete the integration.

If you think your practice may already have a VetConnect PLUS account, but are not sure who the account administrator is, contact customer support, as described above.

Once you have a VetConnect PLUS account, you can view your IDEXX VetConnect PLUS Laboratories results online at vetconnect.com from anywhere at any time.



Adding Staff to the VetConnect PLUS Account

Before you can start using VetConnect PLUS services to create IDEXX test requisitions, the VetConnect PLUS administrator must add the practice's staff members to the VetConnect PLUS account.

To add members to the VetConnect PLUS account:

- **1.** Go to vetconnect.com (U.S.) or vetconnect.ca (Canada).
- 2. Enter the VetConnect PLUS administrator user name and password, and then click Enter VetConnect.
- **3.** Select the **Account Administration** tab, and then click the **Practice Administration** link at the top of the page.

tume Lab Servic	Telemedicine Services	Hedical References	Account Administration	
Account Administration	Practice Administration			

- 4. In the Practice Members area, click Add New Member to display the New Account information form.
- 5. Fill in the required fields (marked with asterisks), and then click Create.
- 6. In the Permissions area, select the permissions for this member:
 - View Lab Reports: User can view all laboratory result reports for your practice.
 - Order Tests/Consult: User can request additional testing and internal medicine consultations through vetconnect.com.
 - Administer Practice: User can edit practice information and add or delete account members.
- 7. Click Save.

Keep a list of the VetConnect PLUS user names and passwords because these may be needed in a future step.



Set Up VetConnect PLUS Services in Avimark

Now that you have everything you need from IDEXX, you must set up your Avimark software so you can use VetConnect PLUS to create test requisitions and so your software can automatically download test results from IDEXX VetConnect PLUS Laboratories.

Set Up AVImark to Order Tests and Download Results

Avimark has changed the way it handles loading and storing IDEXX results. When you load results using the Load button in the Requisition Management window, all available test results are downloaded from IDEXX and stored in individual XML files in a new folder. Results are acknowledged automatically at the time of download. Results that have been imported to an Avimark patient record are stored in another new folder. These imported XML files are automatically deleted after 45 days.

The new folders noted above are created automatically within the Avimark folder. The new folders are:

- **IDEXX Requisitions** This folder is created directly within the Avimark folder and contains all downloaded result XML files that have not yet been imported to Avimark patient records.
- Imported Results This folder is automatically created within the IDEXX Requisitions folder. All results are transferred from the IDEXX Requisitions folder to this location upon being imported to patient records. The XML files reside at this location until 45 days have passed, at which time they are automatically deleted. Automatic deletion helps to prevent the folder from becoming unnecessarily large.

Do not rename, move, or delete these folders. There are no options to allow file name or location changes. If these folders are not found, they are automatically recreated each time the Load button is clicked within the Requisition Management window.

Set Up - Advanced Options

- 1. From the CID, click on 💮 to open Advanced Options.
- 2. Type IDEXX ref in the Search field.
- 3. Expand IDEXX Reference Laboratories/VetConnect/VetConnect Plus®.



file Edit View Help			- Children	
Search idexcc ref				
Options Integration Partners Auto Import And A Auto Import And A Auto Import IDEX IDEXX Reference I IDEXX Reference I Overwite Existing Suppress RX pref VetConnect/VetC VetConnect/VetC Warning message	Identical of Voltement Volter ttach IDEX Lab PDF Results on Load aboratories ID aboratories Password IDEX Test Results on Import to IDEXX Reference Laboratorie mnect Plus Password mnect Plus Username for duplicate codes	naget Plus rs Codes		
Values Security				
Default Value		Charge		

- **1.** Auto Import And Attach IDEXX Lab PDF Setting this value to True automatically downloads and imports the Lab Result PDF to the IDXREQ entry in Medical History as a File Attachment.
- 2. Auto Import IDEXX Results on Load Setting this value to True automatically imports results to the Tests window of the IDXREQ line entry in Medical History.
- 3. IDEXX Reference Laboratories ID This field should contain the IDEXX-assigned account ID (formerly VCAgent User ID).
- IDEXX Reference Laboratories Password This field should contain the IDEXX account password (formerly VCAgent password).
- 5. Overwrite Existing IDEXX Test Results on Import Setting this value to True automatically overwrites partial test results with the final test results once they are downloaded.
- 6. Suppress RX prefix on IDEXX Reference Laboratories Codes This field controls whether or not there is an RX assigned at the beginning of each IDEXX Reference code when imported as an AVImark Treatment.
- 7. VetConnect/VetConnect Plus Password This field should contain the IDEXX-assigned VetConnect password.
- 8. VetConnect/VetConnect Plus Username This field should contain the IDEXX-assigned user name.



Set Up - System Tables

There is a new addition in the Breed Table to accommodate Avimark/IDEXX breed matching.

- 1. From the CID menu, click on Work with > System Tables.
- 2. Select the Breed Table.
- 3. Create a New breed entry or Change an existing entry.

2 New Breed Entry			×
Table	Breed Table		
Code	(NONE)		
Breed			
Туре	1		
Species	(all)		
Antech Breed	1		•
Idexx Breed			
♦ Next	Prior	🗸 ок	X Cancel

- You do not need to make matches in the breed list itself. If an exact breed match is possible, it is done automatically. If necessary, you can match breeds manually when generating the requisition.
 - Species matching is automatic, requires no intervention, and is based on breed assignment.

Aligning Test Codes, Species/Breeds, and Prices

Set Up - Treatment List

IDEXX test codes can be mapped to AVImark treatment codes in multiple ways, as described below.

If you are a current IDEXX VetConnect PLUS user, your treatment associations remain in place. There is no need to reassociate codes.



Mass Mapping

- 1. From the CID menu, click on **Work with > Treatment List**.
- From the Treatment List menu, click on Import Treatments > Import IDEXX Reference Laboratories Treatments. All IDEXX VetConnect PLUS services are imported into Avimark.

The following improvements have been made to mass mapping:

- o Faster speed
- o Progress bar
- o Cancel button
- o A Markup Percentage field that lets you set the Treatment Price based on the List Price of the tests being added as AVImark Treatments

Associating IDEXX VetConnect PLUS Services

This method displays the entire list of Avimark treatment codes and descriptions, as well as a column of IDEXX VetConnect PLUS codes and descriptions. If an Avimark treatment currently has an IDEXX test code associated, it will be displayed in the IDEXX Reference column.

- From the Treatment List, click on Import Treatments > Associate IDEXX Reference Laboratories Services.
- 2. To associate an IDEXX code with an Avimark treatment, click in the IDEXX column and select the IDEXX code from the drop-down list, or begin typing in the field to filter selections.

Gene	Farscript on	EFFX Relevance International
CONUS	CHREACINE PROILIN	0103 - C-RLACIME MODILIN
Rx4007	C. DIPPICLE TONIS ELISA	4051 - C. DFFICLE TOWN EUSA
2/26/6	D. PERF ALPHA TOWN GENE	2646 C. PERF ALFINA TOKIN GENE
213646	O IPERE & PHA TOXIN OLIANT	1645 - C. PERE ALENA TOON OLANT
-(1403)0	C PLATRINGLIGUNGLIGHTER (1000)	400 - C.P., MIRKOLAG LAILROIDIN
Rx3060	CAE AGO	3050 - CAE AG D
R/208	CALGUM	205 CALCUM
211377	CALCUM CHOREFORUS DANRI	1377 - CA. CHY PHOSPHOR IS FAMPL
20.763*	DALCHILMHES HANLS HER	MOT-CAUCH LIGHLS MARLE IIIUR
RK261/D	CALICY RUS FOR FOLLOW UP	25140 - CALICMIRUS PCR FOLLOW UF
RK32941	CALIFORNIA SECOND REGION	32541 CALIFORNIA SECOND REGION
264025	DAMPY - ARD ON	ARES - CAVPY - APD ON
-0.0.704	CAMPY FOLIDS COLICIE	3V54 - CAMPY FOLIDS CULTURE
RX3705	CAMPY FOETUS FA	3735 - CAVPY FOETUS FA
RX3267	CAMPYLOBACTER COLI PCR	3257 CAMPYLOBACTER COLLIPCR
2032671	CAMPYLOBACTER COLLECE ADD-OR	J2571 - CAMPY ORACTER COLLPCE AF
-043256	CAMPPLOUACIER JEJSHIFCH	2206 - CAMPYLOLACIUM JURN HOR
Diverses .	DAMENT CRAFTER HELBER AND TH	THE CAMEY OBACTED SERVICES



Mapping by Avimark Treatment Category

This method loads only the Avimark treatments within a category, where IDEXX VetConnect PLUS can be added, changed, or removed.

- **1.** To map a single AVImark Treatment Category, **right-click** the desired AVImark **Treatment Category**, and select **Associate this category with IDEXX Reference Lab Services**.
- 2. Associate individual treatments with VetConnect PLUS.

Map AVImark Treatments to IDEXX VetConnect PLUS Lab Codes

- **1**. Select the treatment in the Treatment List.
- 2. **Right-click > New** to create a new treatment or choose **Change** to open the Change Treatment window for the AVImark code.
- 3. Select Laboratory > Labs > New, and make the new entry association.

Enable Employee Discounts for VetConnect PLUS Tests

IDEXX offers a professional courtesy discount to practices that use IDEXX VetConnect PLUS as their primary laboratory. Doctors and staff qualify for discounts on tests run at an IDEXX VetConnect PLUS for their personal pets. This discount applies to all tests except cytology, histology, and send-outs. For doctors and staff to receive the discount, the test requisition form must clearly indicate that the patient is an employee pet.

If you have questions about your practice discount, please contact your IDEXX VetConnect PLUS sales consultant.

Set Up Employee Discounts For IDEXX

A new **Action Code** has been added to the Patient Area to mark a patient as an In-House Pet. The "@" Action Code lets you designate specific patients as In-House, instead of being required to do so for each IDEXX VetConnect PLUS requisition generated for those animals.



Name	Fiona			Species	Dog			
General Ins	aurance							
Breed	Newfoundland			Mi	xed			
Color	Black		٠	Age	ðу	Sex F		
Birthday	09-22-09 👻	Unknown		Weight	87	In Ibs		
Codes	0 .		Ce	tificate	0			
Rabies	62555	ePe	Rec	ords ID			- 6	
licrochip	1534791			Plan	GOLDWI	P 01-20-18		
Photo	FIONA			Class	Discount	Client Class		
Folder		Wellne	ss D	Iscount	Gold We	Iness Plan		
Added	02-16-16 -		Re	minded	04-20-17			
Allergy	NONE	• Su	spe	nd Until				
			De	ceased		+		

Setting Up Doctor Discounts for VetConnect PLUS

Doctor discounts are setup in Users and Security by selecting the doctor's client account in the Change User window.

- 1. From the CID menu, click on Work with > Users and Security.
- 2. Select the user then **right-click** > **Change** to open the Change User window.
- 3. The option, User is a Doctor, must be selected.
- 4. Click on the ellipses in the **Account** field to search and select the doctor's Avimark client account.



Integory Horpite Adminis	deminen.		•
First Jand		Last N	Sharp, DVM
ID DIE Passar	and means	CAU PE	sone
Type Full time vot	- E-mall		
Report			
Commission Group	lectors -	66	
Inoctive			Clocks In
- User is a Ductor			Period Starr +
DEA MC109515	DFA Fxp		T Finel chertaine by flay
Licence M03839	Liconso State		Dally Hours 0.00
License Exp:	. NADP		
HITS			Client Account Access
Nadonal Accreditation	Number	ie II	Access Term Full as and
Employee ID			Access (100 (Consecond)
	ppointment Calendar		1.
Appointment Color			
Group Dectors	- 6 4	*	
	_		And a state of the

If the Avimark client account is linked to a doctor's user account in Users and Security and a patient on the client account has the @ action code, the patient will receive the doctor discount when available.



Create A VetConnect Plus Test Requisition

Creating a Requisition for Individual Test Orders

To generate a requisition:

• **Right-click > Requisitions... > Create New Requisition** from the Patient or Medical History area of the CID.

OR

• Enter the IDEXX VetConnect Plus treatment code into the patient's medical history.

Generating a requisition adds an IDXREQ line entry, containing unique requisition identifiers, to Medical History. Results will be imported for this line entry when they are returned by the lab.



If add-ons are available for the requested test, a secondary "Create Requisition " window is displayed, from which the add-ons can be selected.



IDEXX Add-On Functionality

When an IDEXX VetConnect PLUS Requisition is created, the IDEXX Add-On window will open.

- The doctor selected in Avimark will be the Veterinarian in the WebBrowserForm. However, you may type in whatever doctor you need to associate with the test.
- A list of available IDEXX tests will be displayed on the right and can be added to the existing requisition. These codes will then be placed in Medical History for that patient, preventing missed charges.



• If a test requires specimen details, the window will look like the one below:



🔜 WebBrowseForm	- 0
IDEXX Diagnostics 📈 Bi	londie Blue (34)
Velevelarian * Sarah Kelley	Add-ons or (7/24)
Selected Tests HealthChek ^{Tes} Profile (1) Chesh 25 with IDEXX SCMA6 Test, comprehensive C	Ehrlichia canis Antibody by IFA Add-on (hith)
800 a m 2 mL serum 1 ml Collection Method	
Unsalysis Add-dh prim Cystocertesis Ebysical operation and micro Changed Decete	V (8631)
Billin (InLowing) Test notes f	or requisition form -Cabine
A Specimen Details	Pestern.
	Canal Dare (199)
	lion (Serum) Add-on (4621)
	Heartworm Antibody by ELISA (Felline) Add-on (12381)

• When finished, click **Order**. The Requisition form will open:





IDEXX VetConnect PLUS Code Exists in Avimark

The IDEXX VetConnect PLUS treatment code is entered in the patient's Medical History.

PATIEN	T Fela	[12]	1)									No. 77
Name	Felz .				Codes		540	м	12-20-17 0	er Pario	et Chacked I	n 3.2%p
Birthday	(2-03-09	100	AC# 27		Rabies			a station				
Breed	America	n Dul	Terniar		Plan							
Color	Bindie				Weight	55.00	- 10	Ibo :				
Species	Canine				Merar	(10.94)			Reninders	Follow	Age (Falksa)	Conserving: Schender
Medic	al Histor	Ŋ.						_	C. WEINERSON	-		
Date	Timp.	Dr.	Туре	Codo	Dee	celptice				City.	Amount	Attachments
12-20-17	4:19p	CL.	\$ 610	ION/REC	DE)	Of LabRE	XI.RH	susing?	#108296974	1	0.00	Contal Chart
12.20.17	4.15p	0	T (n)	RX77	T4.	VOD ON				1	44.97 C	IT form
12-20-17	3.31p	a	T	RX1013	TOT 1	AL HEAL	TH			1	127.65 J	T Inventory Used
12-20-17	3,290		N 010	APPTS	Ace	cimment	notes: 1	or 12-2	6-17	1	0.00	E Made of Condition
12-20-17	3,290		Vine	VISIT	Pat	ent chee	à in				1-2004	T Have Chall
	1000		11.000	1000								None Man
												V Notice



IDEXX VetConnect PLUS Code Does NOT Exist in Avimark

The IDEXX VetConnect PLUS treatment code is created in the Avimark Treatment List, and then automatically placed in the patient's Medical History. An Avimark window will open allowing you to enter a price for the lab work that will be placed on the new treatment before adding it to Medical History. If a price is not entered before clicking OK, the treatment will be created in the Avimark Treatment List and in Medical History with no price.

		C	ORTIS	OL		×				CORTISO	L		x
		Caccal	CORTI loes n Cost o Creatir rice:	SOL ot exist i f test is 6 ig new b	n AVImark. 50.29 reatment. Please enter					CORTISE does not Cost of 1 Creating price: [85.99	X. exist in AVIn est is 60.29 new treatme OK	nark. ent. Please enter Cancel	
2-29-17	4.59p	ANC	T (n)	F0X000	CORTISOL Requisition # 108205074		1	85.99 .4	F Investory Dee				
2-23-17	4;13p	cı	S (n)	IDI/REQ	IDEXX LabREXX Requisition # Spectree UPL to Https://ontering.vetcome.tbio	108296974 5. com/ul71eks	1	0.00 Of sector	F Medical Coeff	bon .			

This feature will observe Avimark's security function Add New Treatments (TRT01). This means if the user is not authorized to add new treatments, they will be prompted for an administrator's password. If no password is provided, the treatment will not be added to Avimark for billing, but it will still be added to the requisition.

Editing a Pending Requisition

VetConnect PLUS existing requisitions can now be edited until the order has been finalized by the lab. In Avimark, if you enter a lab that allows add-ons and select the requisition line, there is now a **right-click** > **Requisitions** > **Edit Requisition** option. The IDEXX Add-On window will open allowing the user to select the test to be added to the existing requisition.





This will only be allowed until IDEXX has changed the status to NOT allow it to be edited.

The WebBrowserForm opens when you choose Edit Requisition. Choose your tests and click the Order or Update button. A message will appear informing you that if you have already sent a requisition and sample to IDEXX, you do not need to send an updated requisition form with the new tests; they get it electronically. If you DO wish to reprint the requisition, you can right-click on it in Medical History OR in Requisition Management and click View Requisition, then print it.

Viewing a Completed or Pending Requisition

To view or print requisitions:

- 1. Go to Services > Requisitions Management > Requisitions tab.
- 2. Highlight the requisition and click Print. (Click Preview if you want to view but not print it.)

To view a requisition from Medical History:

- 1. Select the requisition line in Medical History.
- 2. Right-click > Requisitions > View Requisition.

						Requisitions	Create New Requisition
Medical	Histor	DE	Туре	Code	Description	Create Batch Requisition Declined	Edit Requisition Cancel Requisition
12-28-17	2:30p	DNS	S (n)	IDXREQ	IDEXX Requisition #108402255 Specimen URL is Mps ifordering vetconnectplus convul?to	Discount	Wew Requisition



Cancelling a Requisition

Requisitions may now be cancelled in Medical History. Cancelling a requisition will remove the requisition out of the patient's Medical History and out of the Requisition Management window. However, it will NOT remove the lab treatment out of Medical History.

With the requisition selected in Medical History, right-click > Requisition > Cancel Requisition.

Confirm	×
(2) Can	cel Requisition?
Yes	No

2010.4.0		×
Contact Ideo: to	complete the cancella	ition process
	UN I	

The requisition line will be removed from Medical History and the Requisition Management window. To finalize the cancellation process, contact IDEXX to cancel the requisition.

Downloading Test Results

Test results from IDEXX VetConnect PLUS can be downloaded automatically to your software and saved to patient records.

Retrieving Results

Results are imported to Medical History automatically when the Advanced Options "Auto Import IDEXX Results on Load" is set to True.

1. Select **Services > Requisition Management > Download Requisitions** tab, and click the **Load** button.

Results being returned from the lab are displayed. When a requisition match is made, the requisition entry is displayed in black, indicating the "Imported" status. To display automatically imported results, select the Medical History Requisition entry in Medical History for the imported entries.

Information displayed in orange indicates "orphaned" results, for which no automatic association could be made. These results can be manually associated with the correct entries.



2. To load results that have already been imported to a patient record for viewing or importing, click the **Load Previously Imported**. These results are stored for 45 days after being imported.

📅 Requisition Management Elle - Edit - View - Enlip			-	×
Requisitions Desricat Regulators	Closed	C Load Previously Imported		_
Created Date Regulation ID	Patient	Accession ID		_

Downloading a PDF of Results

Go to **Services > Requisition Management > Download** tab, **right-click** on the requisition then choose **"Download PDF**" from the shortcut menu.

This option lets you manually download any result PDF file, whether or not the "Auto Import And Attach PDF" option is set to True. The PDF files will be attached to the requisition line in the patient's medical history under file attachments.

Viewing Requisitions on the VetConnect PLUS Site

To view test results on the VetConnect PLUS website:

- 1. In the patient's Medical History, right-click > Tests.
- 2. In the Tests window, select the test result to view.
- **3.** Right-click > View in WEB Browser.

The VetConnect PLUS website will open to those test results.

